EXHIBIT "C"

BY-LAWS

OF

ASPEN LAKES ESTATE OWNERS, INC.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article [			,1
1.1	Kane		.i
1.3	Principa	ll Office	. L
1.3	Definiti	ions	.1
Article II			.i
. 2.	Benberg:	 119	.1
2.	Place of	f Beztiags	.t
2.	innual l	Betings	.1
2.	Special	Reetings	.l
2.	<b>N</b> otice	of Beetings	.i
2.	. Wairer	of Notice	,2
2.	Adjours	ment of Sectings	.2
2.	Toting.	***************************************	.2
2.	?roxies		.2
2.	l <b>o Kajo</b> rit		,2
2.	il Quorus.	***************************************	.2
2.	l2 Genduct	ef Beetings	.2
2.	13 Action	Fithout a Beting	.2
Artielo III.			.3
3.	1 Gayarai	ing Body; Composition	3
3	9 Tuelos	af directors	3
3	3 Directo	ors During Class "1" Control Period	3
3	4 Howins	tion of Directors	3
3	5 Bleckie	on and ferm of Office	3
3	€ Remoya	of Directors and Taxancies	•••
3	.7 Organi:	rational Beetings,	, ș
-	.\$ Legula	Beetings	٠.٠
-	.9 Specia	1 Meetings	
-	.10 Waiver	of Notice	,
_	.11 Quorus	of Board of Birectorssstion	,
-	.12 Gompes	t of Heetings	5
-	.13 Conduc	t of Heetings	5
	.14 Open H .15 Action	Without a Formal Heating	5
	.15 ACC100 .16 Powers	. WILMON, B FOIRM: MESTIME, servers and a server and a se	5
	17 Betien		6
	.18 kizht	of Class "B" Hember to Bisapprove Actions	6
	.15 Granze	######################################	1
	26 Lazani	abe and Barapte	1
	21 Bayes	***************************************	9
	indeiff Ct	of the Argeristics	<b>,</b>
	11 Befar		7
	.24 Proki	bited Acts	. 10
1,413 000		······	11
Article îv	s.1 Offic	**************************************	!
	s, i Uffic k.2 Bleet	ion and Term of Office	
	i., Blecc	al and Tarancies	11
	1.5 75001		

12	4.4	Fowers and Julies	
4.7 Compensation	4.5	Resignation	
4.7 Compensation.  Article V	4.6	Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Leases, Checks, Btc	, , , , , , , 12
5.1       General       12         5.2       Covenants Committee       12         5.3       Transitional Advisory Committee       12         4.1       Fiscal Tear       12         6.2       Parliamentary Rules       12         6.3       Conflicts       12         6.4       Books and Records       12         (a)       Inspection by Hembers and Hortgagees       12         (b)       Rules for Inspection       13         (c)       Inspection by Directors       13	4.7	Compensation	,,12
5.1       General       12         5.2       Covenants Committee       12         5.3       Transitional Advisory Committee       12         4.1       Fiscal Tear       12         6.2       Parliamentary Rules       12         6.3       Conflicts       12         6.4       Books and Records       12         (a)       Inspection by Hembers and Hortgagees       12         (b)       Rules for Inspection       13         (c)       Inspection by Directors       13			12
5.2 Govenants Committee		***************************************	12
5.3 Transitional Advisory Committee	5.1	General	12
### 12 #### 12 ########	5.2	Covenants Countities	15
6.1 Fiscal Tear			
6.1 Fiscal Tear	tratata 97		12
6.2 Farliamentary Eules		# Town	
6.3 Conflicts	• • •	ZISCEL TEST	12
6.4 Books and Records	***	farinamentary koles	
(a) Inspection by Hembers and Hortgagees	6.3	Conflicts	12
(b) Rules for Inspection	6.4	looks and Records	19
(b) Rules for Inspection		(a) Inspection by Members and Hortgagees	
(c) Inspection by Circutors		(0.1 B. 1 - 6 - Tonnanting	
		for the action by Bipartage	
8.3 motivebrane	<i>(</i> <b>t</b>	m . I	
	6.3	######################################	13

### BY-LAWS

### OF

## ASPEN LAKES ESTATE OWNERS, INC.

### ARTICLE I Mann, Principal Office, and Definitions

- 1.1 Mare. The name of the Association shall be Aspen Lakes Estate Owners, Inc. ("Association").
- 1.2 Principal Office. The principal office of the Association in the State of Oregon shall be located in Deschutes County, Oregon. The Association may have such other offices, either within or octaide the State of Oregon, as the Board may determine or as the affairs of the Association may require.
- 1.3 <u>Definitions.</u> The words used in these By laws shall be given their normal, commonly understood definitions. Capitalized terms shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Declaration of Govenzuts, Conditions, and Restrictions for Aspes Lakes filed in the Office of the Country Clark ("Declaration"), unless the context indicates otherwise.

# ARTICLE II Association: Ecohorphip, Sections, Quorum, Voting, Proxies

- 2.1 <u>Hembership</u>. The Association shall have two classes of membership, Claus "A" and Class "B", as more fully set forth is the Declaration, the terms of which pertaining to membership are incorporated by reference.
- 2:2 Place of Meetings. Sectings of the Association shall be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient to the Newbers as may be designated by the Board either within the Properties or as convenient thereto as possible and practical.
- 2.3 Annual Scotings. The first meeting of the Association, whether a regular or special meeting, shall be held mithin 45 days after the conveyance of 51% of the Units in the Properties to Retail Owners, but not later than six months after the first conveyance of a Unit to a Retail Owner after Commencement of Soles. Subsequent regular annual meetings shall be set by the Roard so as to occur at least 30 days but not more than 120 days before the close of the Association's fiscal year on a date and at a time set by the Beard.
- 2.4 Special Meetings. The President may call special meetings. In addition, it shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting if no directed by resolution of the Board or moon a patition rigned by Toting Members representing at loant 10% of the Members of the Association. In accordance with 0.R.S. 94.616, the Association shall call a special meeting not later than 120 days after the Ciacs "B" membership has terminated for the purpose of turning over administrative responsibility to the Association. If the Beclarant fails to call the meeting, the Temporary Advicory Committee, if any, or any Owner may call the meeting is accordance with 0.R.S. 94.609.
- 2.5 Motice of Meetings. Written or printed notice stating the place, day, and hour of any meeting of the Voting Mashers shall be delivered, either personally or by sail, to each Voting Masher estitled to vote at such meeting, not less than 10 nor more than 50 days before the date of such meeting, by or at the direction of the Fremident, or the Secretary, or the officers, or persona calling the meeting.

In the case of a special meeting or when comments required by statute or these By-Laws, the purposes or purposes for which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice. We bearing as called shall be stated in the notice.

If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States small addressed to the

1

Voting Member at his or her address as it appears on the records of the Association, with postage prepaid.

- 2.6 Raiver of Notice. Maiver of notice of a meeting of the Voting Members shall be deemed the equivalent of proper notice. Any Voting Member may, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the Members, either before or after such meeting. Attendance at a meeting by a Voting Member shall be deemed waiver by such Voting Member of notice of the time, date, and place thereof, unless such Voting Member specifically objects to lack of proper notice at the time the meeting is called to order. Attendance at a special Meeting also shall be deemed waiver of notice of all business transacted unless an objection on the basis of lack of proper notice is raised before the business is put to a vote.
- 2.7 Adjournment of Meetings. If any meeting of the Association caunot be held because a quorum is not present, a majority of the Voting Members who are present at such meeting may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than 5 nor more than 30 days from the time the original meeting was called. At the reconvened meeting, if a quorum is present, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called. If a time and place of reconvening the meeting is not fixed by those in attendance at the original meeting or if for any reason a new date is fixed for reconvening the meeting after adjournment, notice of the time and place for reconvening the meeting shall be given to Voting Members in the manner prescribed for regular meetings.

The focing Bembers present at a duly coiled or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Futing Bembers to leave less than a quorum, provided that focing Bembers representing at least 25% of the Emmbers of the Association remain in attendance, and provided that any action taken is approved by at least a sajority of the rotes required to constitute a quorum.

- 2.6 <u>Votice</u>. The voting rights of the Bembers small be as set forth in the Declaration, and such voting rights provisions are specifically incorporated by reference. Voting of the Voting Hembers at a meeting may be by voice or bailot, except the election of directors which shall be by secret written ballot.
- 2.9 Proxies. Voting Hembers may vote by proxy. We proxy shall be valid usless it meets the requirement of G.k.S. 94.660 and is signed by the Owner or his or her duly authorized attorney-in-fact, dated, and filed with the Secretary of the Association prior to say meeting for which it is to be effective. No proxy shall be valid after one year from its date of execution saless otherwise specified in the proxy.
- 2.10 <u>Majority</u>. As used in these By-Leus, the term "majority" shall mean those votes, owners, or other group as the content may indicate totaling more than 50% of the total eligible number whether represented in person or by proxy.
- 2.11 Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in these By-Laus or in the Beclaration, the presence of the Voting Benders representing a majority of the total votes is the Association shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Association membership, whether personally present or present by prosy.
- 2.12 Conduct of Beetings. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Association, and the Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meeting and record is a minute book all resolutions adopted at the meeting, as well as a record of all transactions occurring at the meeting.
- 2.13 Letion Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted by law to be taken at a meeting of the membership any be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote if written consent specifically authorizing the proposed action is signed without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote if written consent specifically authorizing the proposed action is signed by Yoting Members holding at least the minimum number of votes necessary to authorize such action at a meeting if all Yoting Members entitled to vote thereon were present. Such consents shall be signed within 60 days after receipt of the earliest dated consent, entitled to vote thereon were present. Such consents shall be filled with dated and delivered to the Association at its principal place of business in the State of Oregon. Such consents shall be filled with the minutes of the Association, and shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Yoting Hembers.

### ARTICLS III Board of Birectors: Number, Jowers, Beetings

#### A. Composition and Selection.

- 3.1 Governing Body; Composition. The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board, each of whom shall have one equal vote. Except with respect to directors (a) appointed by the Glass "R" Member during the Glass "R" Control Period pursuant to Section 3.3, (b) elected by the Glass "B" Member after the expiration of the Glass "P" control Period or (c) elected by the Glass "A" votes held by Declarant after the conversion of the Glass "B" membership to Glass "A" membership pursuant to Section 3.3(b) of the Declaration, the directors shall be Bembers or spouses of such Bembers; provided, however, no person and his or her sponse may serve on the Buard at the same time. In the case of a Bember which is not a natural person, any officer, director, partner or trust afficer of each Bember about the elicible to accept at a director unless attached as accepted and the elicible to accept at a director accepted to the director as a director accepted by the Board at a time, except in the case of literatural answers are a director accepted by the Board at a time, except in the case of literatural answers are a directors of the Board at a time, except in the case of literatural answers are a director and the Board at a time, except in the case of literatural answers are a director and the Board at a time, except in the case of literatural answers are a director and the Board at a time, except by the Glass "B" Bember as a director as a second of the Class "B" Bember as a conversion of the Glass "B" Control Period, or (c) elected by the Glass "A" votes held by Coclarant after the conversion of the Glass "B" membership to Class "A" membership t
- 3.2 <u>Aumber of Directors.</u> The number of directors is the Association shall be not less than three nor wore than seven, as provided in Section 3.5. The initial Board shall consist of three directors as identified to the Articles of Incorporation.
- 3.3 <u>Directors Puring Class "B" Control Period.</u> Subject to the provisions of Section 3.5, the directors shall be appointed by the Class "B" Member acting in its sole discretion and shall serve at the pleasure of the Class "B" Member until the first to occur of the following:
  - (a) when 75% of the Maximum Units have certificates of occupancy issued thereon and have been conveyed to Retail Owners;
- (b) Fifteen years from the anniversary date of the coaregance of the first Unit to a Retail Owner ofter the Commencement of Sales, except as provided for in Section 3.3(b)(ii) of the Declaration or;
  - (c) when, is its discretion, the Class "8" Hember so determines.
- 3.4 <u>Boniantion of Directors.</u> Except with respect to directors selected by the Class "B" Member, or the Declarant, as the case may be, pursuant to Section 3.1, nominations for election to the Board shall be made by a Mexinating Committee. The Monianting Committee shall consist of a Chairman, sho shall be a member of the Board, and three or more Members or representatives of Members. The Monianting Committee shall be appointed by the Board not less than 30 days prior to each annual meeting of the Voting Members to serve a term of one year or matil their successors are appointed, and such appointment shall be announced at each such annual meeting. The Monianting Committee shall make as many members to serve a term of one year or matil their successors are appointed, and such appointment shall in its shall in its discretion determine, but in no event less than the number of positions to be filled from each slate as provided in Section 3.5. The Monianting Committee shall members to be relected by the Yoting Members. Moniantions shall also have a reasonable opportunity to communicate their qualifications to the Yoting Members and to solicit votes.
  - 3.5 Ricction and Term of Office. Motwithstanding may other provision of these By-Lane
- (s) Within one year after the first Unit is conveyed to a Retail Owner, the President shall call a special meeting to be held at which the Voting Members representing the Class "A" Members, other than the Declarant, shall elect one of the three directors. The Remaining two directors shall be appointees of the Class "B" Member. The director elected by the Voting Members shall not be subject to removal by the Class "8" member and shall be elected for a term of two years or until the happening of the event described in subsection (b) below, whichever is shorter. If such director's term expires prior to the happening of the event described in subsection (b) below, a successor shall be elected for a like term.
- (b) Within 30 days after the time that Retail Owners one SOZ of the Maximum Units, or whenever the Glass "A" Member earlier determines, the board shall be increased to five directors. The President shall call a special meeting at which Yoting Members representing the Glass "A" Members, other than the Declarant, shall be entitled to elect two of the five directors, who shall serve

as re-large directors. The remaining three directors shall be appointers of the Glass "B" Member. The directors elected by the Voting Members whall not be subject to removal by the Class "B" Member and shall be elected for a term of two years or until the happening of the event described in subsection (c) below, whichever is shorter. If such directors' terms expire prior to the happening of the event described in subsection (c) below, successors shall be elected for a like term.

(r) Within 120 days after the termination of the Class "B" Control Period, the Beard shall be increased to seven directors. The President shall call a meeting at which all directors shall be elected as follows: Subject to subsection (d) below, the directors shall be elected by Yoting Benbers representing both Class "A" and Class "B" Benbers. The wajority of the directors shall be elected for a term of two years and the remaining directors shall be elected (or appointed as the case may be pursuant to subsection (d) below) for a term of one year, with each term to expire at the next annual meeting after the two-year or one-year period, as applicable. Successor directors shall be elected (or appointed as the case may be pursuant to subsection (d) below) at annual meetings to serve for two-year terms.

There shall be no cumulative voting. The caudidates receiving the most votes shall be elected. For the first election held cursuant to this subsection, of the elected candidates, those receiving the most votes shall merve for two years. The directors elected by the Voting Bembers shall hold office until their respective successors have been elected. Directors may be elected to serve any number of consecutive terms.

- (d) After the Class "B" Control Period, the Declarant shall have the right to appoint or elect at least 20% of the Board Members as long as the Beclarant has the power to assex property pursuant to Article IX of the Declaration.
- 3.6 Removal of Directors and Vacancies. Any director elected by the Voting Benbers may be removed, with or without cause, by the vote of Voting Hembers holding a majority of the votes entitled to be cast for the election of such director. Any director whose removal is cought shall be given notice prior to any meeting called and noticed for that purpose. A director who was elected solely by the votes of Voting Hembers representing Class "A" Hembers (other than the Declarant), may be removed from Office prior to the expiration of his or her turn only by the votes of Voting Hembers representing a majority of the Class "A" Hembers (other than the Declarant). Upon removal of a director, a successor shall be elected by the Voting Hembers entitled to elect the director so removed to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term of such director.

Any director elected by the Voling Members who has three consecutive unexcused absences from Board meetings, or who is more than 30 days delimquent in the payment of any assensement or other charge due the Association, may be removed by a majority of the directors present at a regular or special meeting at which a quorum is present, and a successor may be appointed by the Poard to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term.

In the event of the death, disability, of resignation of a director, the Board may declare a vacancy and appoint a successor to fill the vacancy matil the ment annual meeting, at which time the Voting Members entitled to fill such directorship may elect a successor for the remainder of the term.

### s. Keetiags

- 3.7 Organizational Meetings. The first meeting of the Board following each annual meeting of the membership shall be held within 10 days thereafter at such time and place as the Board shall fix.
- 3.8 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board may be held at such time and place as a majority of the directors shall determine, but at least four such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year with at least one per quarter. Notice of the time and place of the meeting shall be posted in a prominent place within the Properties and communicated to directors not less than four days prior to the meeting; provided, however, notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who has signed a wriver of notice or a written consent to helding of the meeting.
- 3.9 Special Exetings. Special meetings of the Board shall be held when called by written notice signed by the freedent or by any two directors. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered. The notice shall be given to each director by: (a) personal delivery; (b) first class sail, postage prepaid; (c) telephone communication, cither directly to the director or to a person at the director's office or home who would reasonably be

expected to communicate such notice promptly to the director, or (d) telegram, charges prepaid. All such notices shall be given at the director's telephone number or sent to the director's address as shown on the records of the Association. Botices of special meetings of the Board shall be posted in a prominent place within the Properties. Botices sent by first class mail shall be deposited into a United States mailbox at least four business days before the time set for the meeting. Botices given by personal delivery, telephone, or telegraph shall be delivered, telephoned, or given to the telegraph company at least 72 hours before the time set for the meeting.

- 3.10 Waiver of Motice. The transactions of any meeting of the board, however called end noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though taken at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice if (a) a quorum is present, and (b) either before or after the meeting each of the directors not present signs a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the minutes. The maiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. Notice of a meeting also shall be deemed given to any director who attends the meeting without protesting before or at its commencement about the lack of adequate
- 3.11 Quorum of Board of Directors. At all meetings of the Board, a majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board, maleum otherwise specifically provided in these By-Laum of the Board cannot a moeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, it may action taken a approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for that meeting. If may meeting of the Board cannot be held because a quorum is not present, a majority of the directors present at such meeting may adjourn the meeting to a time sat leas than five nor more than 30 days from the date of the original meeting. At the reconvened meeting, if a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted without further metics.
- 3.12 Compensation. No director shall receive any compensation from the Association for acting as such unless approved by Voting Hembers representing a majority of the total Class "A" votes in the Association, other than the Beclarant, at a regular or special meeting of the Association. Any director may be reimbursed for expenses incurred on behalf of the Association upon approval of a majority of the other directors. Sotting herein shall prohibit the Association from compensating a director, or any entity with which a director is affiliated, for services or supplies furnished to the Association in a capacity other than as a director pursuant to a contract or agreement with the Association, provided that such director's interest was made known to the Board orier to entering into such contract and such contract was approved by a unjority of the Board, excluding the interested director.
- 3.13 Conduct of Heetings. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Board, and the Secretary shall keep a minute book of meetings of the Board, recording all resolutions adopted by the Board and all transactions and proceedings occurring at such
- 3.14 Open Beetings. Subject to the provisions of Section 3.15, all meetings of the Board shall be open to all Voting Bembers, but a Voting Bember other than directors may not participate in any discussion or deliberation unless permission to speak is requested on his or her behalf by a director. In such case, the President may limit the time any Voting Bember may speak. Notwithstanding the above, the President may adjourn any meeting of the Board and reconvene in executive session, excluding Voting Hembers, to discuss matters of a sensitive mature, such as pending or threatened litigation, personnel matters, etc.
- 3.15 Action Without a Formal Recting. Any action to be taken at a meeting of the directors or any action that may be taken at a meeting of the directors may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, action forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the directors, and such consent shall have the same force and effect as a manimous rote. Written consents or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board. An explanation of the action to be taken or actually taken by the Board shall be given to the Hembers of the Association within three days after all written consents have been obtained. The explanation shall be given in the same manner as provided in the By-Laws for the giving of notice of regular meetings of the Board. Failure to give notice shall not render the action to be taken or actually taken invalid.

## C. Powers and Buties

3.16 Powers. The Board shall have all of the powers and dutier necessary for the administration of the Association's affairs and for performing all responsibilities and exercising all rights of the Association as set forth in the Declaration, these by-Lutz,

the Articles, and as provided by law. The Board may do or cause to be done all acts and things as are not by the Declaration, Articles, these By-Laws, or Oregon law directed to be done and exercised exclusively by the Voting Members or the membership generally.

- 3.17 Duties. The duties of the Board shall include without limitation:
  - (a) preparation and adoption of annual budgets and establishing each Owner's share of the Common Expenses;
  - (b) levying and collecting assessments from the Owners to fund the Common Expenses;
  - (c) providing for the operation, care, upkeep, and maintenance of the Area of Common Responsibility;
- (d) designating, hiring, and dismissing the personnel necessary to carry out the rights and responsibilities of the Association and where appropriate, providing for the compensation of such personnel and for the purchase of equipment, supplies, and materials to be used by such personnel in the performance of their duties;
- (e) depositing all funds received on behalf of the Annociation in a bank depository which it shall approve, and using such funds to operate the Association; provided, any reserve fund may be deposited, in the directors' best business judgment, in depositories other than banks:
  - (f) making and amending cules and regulations;
  - (g) opening of bank accounts on behalf of the Association and designating the signatories required;
- (h) making, or contracting for the making of, repairs, additions, and improvements to, or alterations of, the Common Area in accordance with the Seclaration and these By-Lass;
- (i) enforcing by legal means the provisions of the Declaration, these Fy-Laws, and the rules adopted by it and bringing any proceedings which may be instituted on behalf of, or against, the Owners concerning the Association;
- (j) obtaining and carrying property and limbility insurance and fidelity boods, as provided in the Declaration, paying the cost thereof, and filing and adjusting claims, as appropriate;
- (1) paying the cost of all service rendered to the Association or its Members and not chargeable directly to specific Gwaets;
  - (1) keeping books with detailed secounts of the receipts and expenditures of the Association;
- (u) making available to any prospective purchaser of a Unit, any Owner, and the holders, insurers, and guaranters of any Hortgage on any Unit, current copies of the Peclaration, the Articles of Incorporation, the By-Lams, rules and all other books, records, and disappoint atatements of the Association;
- (a) permitting mility suppliers to use portions of the Common Area reasonably secessary to the ongoing development or operation of the properties;
- (v) indemnifying a director, officer or committee member, or former director, officer or committee member of the Association to the extent such indemnity is required by Oregon law, the Articles of Incorporation and the Declaration; and
- (p) assisting in the resolution of disputes between owners and others without litigation, as set forth in the Beclaration.

3.18 Right of Class "B" Bymber to Disapprove Actions. Butil 75% of the maximum units are owned by Recail Owners, the Declarant shall have a right to disapprove any action, policy or program of the Association, the Board and committee which, in the judgment of the Declarant, would tend to impair rights of the Declarant or Builders wader the Declarant, would tend to impair rights of the Declarant or Builders wader the Declarant, would tend to impair rights of the Declarant or Builders wader the Declarant.

development, construction of any portion of the Properties, or diminish the level of service; being provided by the Association.

No such action, palicy or program shall become effective or be implemented until and unless:

- (a) The Declarant shall have been given written notice of all meetings and proposed actions approved at meetings of the Associacion, the Board or any committee thereof by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by personal delivery at the address it has registered with the Secretary of the Association, as it may change from time to time, which notice complies as to the Board meetings with Sections 3.8, 3.9 and 3.10 of theme By-Laws and which notice shall, except in the case of the regular meetings held pursuant to the By-Laws, set forth in reasonable particularity the agenda to be followed at said meeting; and
- (b) The Beclarant shall be given the opportunity at any auch meeting to join in or to have its representatives or agents join in discussion from the floor of any prospective action, policy, or program which would be subject to the right of disapproval set forth herein. The Beclarant, its representatives or agents shall make its concerns, thoughts, and suggestions knows to the Board and/or the members of the subject committee. The Beclarant shall have and is hereby granted a right to disapprove any such action, policy, or program authorized by the Association, the Board or any committee thereof, if Board, committee, or Association approval is necessary for such action. This right may be exercised by the Declarant, its successors, assigns, representatives, or agents at any time within 10 days following the meeting held pursuant to the terms and provisions bereof. This right to disapprove may be used to block proposed actions but shall not extend to the requiring of any action or counteraction on behalf of any remaittee, or the Board or the Association. The Beclarant shall not use its right to disapprove to reduce the level of services which the Association is obligated to provide or to prevent capital repairs or any expenditure required to comply with applicable laws and regulations.
- (c) This Section may not be amended without the empress written consent of the Declarant until 75% of the Maximum Units have been conveyed to Retail Owners.
- 3.19 Hanagement. The Board may employ for the Experiation a professional management agent or agosts at such compensation as the Board may establish, to perform such duties and services as the Board shall authorize. The Board may delegate such powers as are necessary to perform the manager's assigned duties, but shall not delegate policy making authority or those duties set forth in Sections 3.17(a) and 3.17(i). The Beclarant, or an affiliate of the Beclarant, may be employed as managing agent or manager.

The Board may delegate to one of its members the authority to act on behalf of the Board on all matters relating to the Duties of the messging agent or manager, if any, which might arise between meetings of the Board.

The Association shall not be bound, either directly or indirectly, by any management contract executed during the Class "B" Control Period unless anch contract contains a right of termination exercisable by the Association, with or without cause and without penalty, at any time after termination of the Class "B" Control Period upon not more than 30 days written notice.

- 3.20 Accounts and Reports. The Pollowing management standards of performance shall be followed maless the Board by resolution specifically determines otherwise:
  - (a) scernal accounting, as defined by generally accepted accounting principles, shall be employed;
  - (b) accounting and controls should conform to generally accepted accounting principles;
  - (c) cash accounts of the Association shall not be commingled with any other accounts;
- (d) no remaneration shall be accepted by the managing agent from renders, independent contractors, or others providing goods or services to the Association, whether in the form of commissions, finder's fees, service fees, prizes, gifts, or otherwise; anything of calse received shall benefit the Association;
- (e) any firancial or other interest which the managing agent may have in any firm providing goods or services to the Association shall be disclosed promptly to the Board;

- (f) the following financial and related information shall be regularly prepared and distributed by the Board to all Hembers of the Association:
- (i) The Board shall cause a "Capital Budget" and a "Common Expense Budget" (collectively referred to as the "Budget") for the Association, to be prepared for each fiscal year of the Association, a copy of which shall be distributed to each Hember of the Association not less than 45 nor more than 40 days before the beginning of the fiscal year to which the Budget relates. A copy of the Budget shall be distributed personally or by mail or other manner reasonably designed to provide delivery to each of the Hembers of the Association. The Budget shall include the following information:
- (A) the estimated revenue and expenses of the Association on an accrual basis for the forthcoming fiscal year:
- (B) the amount of the total cash reserves of the Association currently available for the replacement or major repair of the Area of Common Responsibility and for contingencies;
- (C) an estimate of the current replacement costs of the estimated remaining useful life of, and the methods of funding to defray future repair, replacement or additions to, those major components of the Area of Gousson Responsibility; and
- (h) a general statement setting forth the procedures used by the Board in the calculation and establishment of reserves to defray the future repair, replacement or additions to major components of the Area of Gommon Responsibility.
- (B) a disclosure statement that the Beclarant or a Builder is contributing 'is kind" services or material pursuant to a contract with the Association, if any, and that their assessment obligation may be reduced or abated by the amount of the agreed value of such services of materials; and
- (P) a disclosure statement that a subsidy contract exists between the Declarant and the Association, if that in the case.

The Budget shall become effective unless disapproved at a meeting of the Yoting Members representing at least a majority of the Hembers of the Association. There shall be no obligation to call a meeting for the purpose of considering the Sudget sacept on petition of the Yoting Hembers as provided for special meetings in Section 2.4 of the By-Laus, which petition must be presented to the Board within 10 days of delivery of the motice of assessments. In the event the proposed budget is disapproved or the Board within 10 days of delivery of the motice of assessments. In the event the proposed budget is disapproved or the Board fails for any reason to determine the Mudget for any year, then and mutil such time as a Budget shall have been determined as provided herein, the Budget in effect for the immediately preceeding year shall continue for the current year.

In lieu of distributing the Budget as specified in the above paragraphs of this Section 3.20, the Board may elect to distribute a summary of the Budget ("Summary") to all its Hembers with a written notice that the Budget is available at the basiness office of the Association or at another suitable location within the boundaries of the Properties and that copies will be provided upon request at the expense of the Association. If any Hember requests a copy of the Budget, the Association shall provide such copy to the Hember by first-class United States mail and deliver such copy within five days of such request. The written notice that is distributed to each of the Hembers shall be is at least 10 point bold type on the front page of the Summary.

In the event the Board elects to distribute the Budget, upon written request for the Association's most recent Budget by any Member, the Association shall, within 10 days of the mailing or delivery of the request, provide to any Hember of the Association acopy of the Budget. The Association may charge a fee for this service, which shall not exceed the reasonable cost to prepare and reproduce the Budget.

(ii) The Board shall cause an annual report ("Financial Statement") to be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles to be distributed to each Member of the Association within 120 days after close of the Association's fiscal year. A copy of the Financial Statement shall be distributed personally or by mail or other manner reasonably designed to provide delivery to each of the Members of the Association, and shall consist of:

the power to impose reasonable fines. A fine, other than a penalty for nonpayment of assessments, shall not coastitute a lien upon the Unit of the violating Owner. The Board shall also have the power to suspend an Owner's right to vote or any person's right to use the Common Area for violation of any duty imposed under the Declaration, these By-laws, or any rules and regulations duly adopted hereunder; provided, however, nothing herein shall authorize the Board to limit ingress and egress to or from a Unit or to suspend an Owner's right to vote due to nonpayment of assessments. In addition, the Board may suspend any service provided by the Association to an Owner or the Owner's Unit if the Owner is more than 30 days delinquent in paying any assessment or other charges owed to the Association. In the event that any occupant, guest or invitee of a Unit violates the Declaration, By-baws, or a rule and a fine is imposed, the fine shall first be assessed against the occupant; provided, however, if the fine is not paid by the occupant within the time period set by the Board, the Ewner shall pay the fine upon notice from the Association. The failure of the Board to enforce any provision of the Peclaration, By-baws, or any rule shall not be deemed a waiver of the right of the Board to do so thereafter.

- (a) <u>Notice</u>. Prior to imposition of any manction becomeder or under the Beclaration, the Board or its delegate shall serve the alleged violator with written notice describing (i) the nature of the alleged violation, (ii) the proposed sauctica to be imposed, (iii) a period of not less then 15 days within which the alleged violator may present a written request for a hearing to the Board or the Covenants Committee, if any, appointed pursuant to Article V: and (iv) a statement that the proposed sanction shall be imposed as contained in the notice unless a challenge is begun within 15 days of the notice. If a timely challenge is not made, the sanction stated in the notice shall be imposed; provided the Board or the Covenants Committee may, but shell not be obligated to, suspend any proposed sanction if the violation in cured within the 15 day period. Such suspension shall not constitute a waiver of the right to sanction future violations of the same or other provisions and cules by any Person.
- (b) Bearing. If a hearing is requested within the allorted 15 day period, the hearing shall be held before the Covenants Committee, if any, or if none, before the Soard in executive session. The alleged violator shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard. Prior to the effectiveness of any sanction bereunder, proof of proper notice shall be placed in the minutes of the meeting. Such proof shall be deemed adequate if a copy of the notice, together with a statement of the date and manner of delivery, is entered by the officer, director, or agent who delivered such notice. The notice requirement shall be deemed estisfied if the alleged violator appears at the meeting. The minutes of the neeting shall contain a written statement of the results of the hearing and the sanction, if any, imposed.
- (c) Appeal. Pollowing a hearing before the Covenants Committee, the violator shall have the right to appeal the decision to the Board. To perfect this right, a written motive of appeal must be received by the manager, President, or Secretary of the Association within 10 days after the hearing date.
- (d) Additional Enforcement Rights. Motwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article, the Board may elect on enforce any provision of the Reclaration, these By-Laws, or the rules of the Association by salf-help (specifically including, but not limited to, the towing of vehicles that are in violation of parking rules and regulations; however, only in accordance with any applicable ordinances of the County of Deschotes, if applicable) or, following compliance with the procedures set forth in Article XVI of the Declaration, by suit at law or in equity to enjoin many violation to recover momentary damages or both without the necessity of compliance with the procedure set forth above. Is any such action, to the maximum extent permissible, the Owner or occupant responsible for the violation of which shatcment is sought shall pay all costs, including reasonable attorney's fees actually incurred.
- 3.26 Probibited Acts. The Board shall not take any of the following actions except with the written convent or vote of the Voting Hembers representing at least a majority of the Members other than the Declarant:
- (a) to incur aggregate expenditures for capital improvements to the Area of Common Responsibility in any fixeal year in excess of 5% of the budgeted Common Expenses of the Association for that Piscel year;
- (b) to sell during any fiscal year property of the Association basing an aggregate fair market value greater than 5% of the budgeted Common Expenses of the Association for that fiscal year;
- (c) to pay compensation to directors or officers of the Association for service performed in the conduct of the Association's business; provided, however, the Board may cause a director or officer to be reimbursed for expenses incurred in carrying on the business of the Association;

- (d) to enter into a contract with a third Person whereis the third Person will furnish goods or services for a term longer than one year with the following exceptions:
- (i) a management contract, the terms of which have been approved by the U. S. Department of Yeterans Affairs ("TA") or the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") if either agency is guaranteeing or insuring a Mortgage in the Properties:
- (ii) a contract with a public utility company, if the rates charged for the materials or services are regulated by the Public Utilities Commission; provided, however, the terms of the contract shall not exceed the shortest term for which a supplier will contract at the regulated rate;
- (iii) prepaid casualty and/or liability insurance policies not to exceed three years Auration, provided that the policy permits short rate cancellation by the insured;
- (10) lease agreements for laundry room fixtures and equipment of a duration not to exceed five years, provided that the lessor is not an entity in which Seclarent has a direct or indirect interest of 10% or more;
- (v) agreements for cable television services and equipment or satellite television services and equipment not to exceed five years duration, provided that this supplier is not an entity in which Declarant has a direct or indirect interest of 10% or more;
- (vi) agreements for male or lease of burglar alarm and fire alarm equipment, installation and services thereof, not to exceed five years duration, provided that the supplier is not an emity in which Declarant has a direct or indirect interest of 10% or more.
- (e) no contract with the Association negotiated by Declarant shall exceed a term of one year except as may otherwise be provided in paragraph (d) of this Section.

# ARTICLE IV

- 4.1 Officers. The officers of the Association shall be a Prepident, Vice President, Secretary, and Yreasurer. The President, Fire President, Secretary and Treasurer shall be elected from among the members of the Board. The Board way appoint such other officers, including one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to bare the authority and perform the duties prescribed by the Board. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary.
- 4.2 Rection and Term of Office. The officers of the Association shall be elected abanelly by the Soard at the first meeting of the Board following each samual meeting of the membership, as set forth in Article III.
- 4.3 Removal and Vaccacies. Any officer may be removed by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association will be served thereby. A Vacascy in any office priming because of death, resignation, removal, or otherwise may be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion of the term.
- 4.4 Powers and Daties. The officers of the Association shall each have such powers and deties as generally portain to their respective offices, as well as such powers and duties as may specifically be conferred or imposed by the board. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. The Tressurer shall have primary responsibility for the preparation of the budget as provided for in the Beclaration and may delegate all or part of the preparation and notification duties to a figurace committee, management agent, or both.
- 4.5 Resignation. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President, or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take affect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and suless

otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective:

- 4.6 Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Leages, Checks, Btc. All agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks, and other instruments of the Association (other than for the ithdrawal of reserve (ands) shall be executed by at least two officers or by such other person or persons as may be designated by resolution of the Board. The Board shall require signatures for the withdrawal of reserve funds of either two members of the Board or a member of the Board and officer of the Association who is not also a member of the Board. For purposes of this section, "reserve funds" means nonies the Board has identified in the Budget to defray the future repair or replacement of, or additions to, those major items which the Association is obligated to maintain.
- 4.7 Compensation. Compensation of officers shall be subject to the same limitations as compensation of directors under Section 3.12 hereof.

# ARTICLE V

- 5.1 General. The Board may appoint such committees as it deems appropriate to perform such tasks and to serve for such periods as the Board may designate by resolution. Ruch committee shall operate in accordance with the terms of such resolution.
- 5.2 Covenants Committee. In addition to any other committees which the Board may establish pursuant to Section 5.1, the Board may appoint a Covenants Committee consisting of at least three and no more than seven Members. Acting in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration, these By-Laws, and resolutions the Board may adopt, the Covenants Committee, if established, shall be the hearing tribucal of the Association and shall conduct all hearings held pursuant to Section 3.23 of these By-Laws.
- 5.3 Transitional Advisory Committee. In addition to say other committees appointed as provided above, the Board shall establish pursuant to 0.8.5. 34.664, a Transitional Advisory Committee when more than 50% of the Basimum Units are owned by Estail Owners and Class "5" membership has not yet terminated.

### ARTICLE VI Miscellaneous

- 6.1 Piscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall be set by resolution of the Board. In the abscace of a resolution, the fiscal year shall be the entendar year.
- 6.2 Parliamentary Ryles. Except as may be modified by Board resolution, Robert's Roles of Order (current addition) shall govern the conduct of Association proceedings when not in conflict with Oregon laws, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, or these By-Laws.
- 6.3 Conflicts. If there are conflicts between the provisions of Oregon law, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, and these By-Laws, the provisions of Oregon law, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, and the By-Laws (in that order) shall press).

### 5.4 Books and Records.

(a) Inspection by Hembers and Nortgagess. The Board shall make available for inspection and copying by any holder, insurer or garranter of a first Mortgage on a Unit, any Hember, or the duly appointed representative of any of the foregoing at any reasonable time and for a purpose reasonably related to his or her interest in a Unit: the Beclaration, By-Laws, and Articles of Incorporation, any amendor-to to the foregoing, the rules of the Association, the membership register, the sont recent Financial Statement, the current Budget, books of account, and the minutes of meetings of the Members, the Board, and committees. The Board shall provide for such inspection to take place at the office of the Association or at such other place within the Properties as the Roard shall designate.

- (b) Rules for Inspection. The Sourd shall establish reasonable rules with respect to:
  - (i) notice to be given to the contodian of the vecords;
  - (ii) hours and days of the week when such an inspection may be made; and
  - (iii) payment of the cost of reproducing copies of documents requested.
- (c) Inspection by Birectors. Every director shall have the absolute right ut any reasonable time to imaged all books, records, and documents of the Association and the physical properties owned or controlled by the Association. The right of inspection by a director includes the right to make a copy of relevant documents at the expense of the Association.
- 6.5 Botices. Unless otherwise provided in these By-Caus, all notices, demands, bills, statements, or other communications under these By-Laws shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally or if cent by Unived States mail, first class postage prepaid;
- (s) if to a Bember or Voting Member, at the address which the Member or Voting Bember has designated in writing and filed with the Secretary or, if no such address has been designated, at the address of the Buit of such Member or Toting hember; or
- (b) if to the Association, the Board or the managing agent, at the principal office of the Association or the managing agent, if any, or at such other address as shall be designated by notice in writing to the Members pursuant to this Section.

- (a) By Beclarant Benber. Prior to the conveyance of the first Unit to a Retail Owner and prior to Commencement of Saies, the Declarant may unilaterally amend these By-Laws. After the conveyance of any Unit, the Declarant may unilaterally amend these By-Laws at any time if such amendment is;
  - (i) necessary to bring any provision hereof into compliance with any applicable governmental statutes, rule or regulation, or judicial determination:

(ii) necessary to enable say reputable title insurance company to issue title insurance coverage on the

- (iii) required by an institutional or governmental lander or purchaser of mortgage leans, including, for example, the rederal distinual Mortgage Association or Rideral Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, to enable such leader or purchaser to make or purchase mortgage loans on the Unite; or
- (iv) otherwise necessary to enable any governmental agency or reputable private incurance company to incure mortgage loans on the Units; provided, however, any such amendment shall not adversely affect the title to any Sait unless the affected Owner shall consent thereto in writing.
- (b) By Hambers Geografiy. Except as provided above, these By-Laws may be amended only by the affirmative vote or written consent, or any combination thereof, of Voting Members representing 51% of each class of Members. After conversion of the Class "B" membership to Class "A" membership, these By-Laws may be amended by the sole or written consent of the Voting Bembers representing at least: (a) 75% of the Members; and (b) 75% of the Members other than the Benlarant.

In addition, the approval requirements set forth in Article XIV of the Declaration shall be met, if applicable. Motwithstanding the above, the percentage of votes accessary to amend a specific classe shall not be less than the prescribed percentage of affirmative votes required for action to be taken mader that clause.

(c) Validity and Effective Date of Amendments. Amendments to these By-Laws shall become effective upon recordation in the Office of The County Clerk maless a later effective date is specified therein. Any procedural challenge to an amendment asset be made within six months of its recordation or such amendment shall be presumed to have been validly adopted. In no event shall a change of conditions or direcurtances operate to amend any provisions of these By-Laws.

If an Owner consents to any amendment to the Declaration or these By-Laws, it will be conclusively presumed that such Owner has the Authority so to consent and ac contrary provision in any Hortgage or contract between the Owner and a third party will affect the validity of such amendment.

Ho amendment may remove, revoke, or modify any right or privilege of Declarant without the written consent of Declarant or the assignee of such right or privilege.

## CERTIFICATION

	I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:
	That I um the duly elected and acting Secretary of the Association;
ne 1 d	That the foregoing By-Laws constitute the original By-Laws of said Association, as duly adopted at a meeting of the Board thereof on theday of
۵f	IN BITEISS THERBOY, I have become aubscribed by name and affixed the seal of said Association thisday
	Vaanheur

### EXHIBIT "D"

### Rules of Arbitration

- Claimant shall submit a Claim to arbitration under these Rules by giving written notice to all other Parties stating plainly
  and concisely the nature of the Claim, the remedy sought and Claimant's desire to submit the Claim to arbitration ("Arbitration
  Rotice").
- 2. Bach Party shall select an arbitrator ("Party Appointed Arbitrator"). The Party appointed Arbitrators shall, by agreement, select one or two neutral arbitrators ("Bentral(r)") so that the total arbitration pane! ("Panel") has an odd number of arbitrators. If any Party fails to appoint Party Appointed Arbitrator within 20 day: from the date of the Arbitration Notice, the remaining arbitrators shall conduct the proceedings, selecting a Neutral in place of any missing Party Appointed Arbitrator. The Neutral arbitrator(s) shall select a chairperson ("Chair").
- 3. If the Panel is not selected under Rule 2 within 45 days from the date of the Arbitration Notice, Claimant may notify the Oregon chapter of The Community Association lostitute, which shall appoint one Sentral ("Appointed Mautral"), notifying the Appointed Rentral and all Parties in writing of such appointment. The appointed Rentral shall thereafter be the cole arbitrator ("Arbitrator"), and any Party Appointed Arbitrators or their designees shall have no farther duties involving the arbitration proceedings.
- 4. We person hay serve as a Meutral in any arbitration under these Rules in which that person has any financial or personal interest in the result of the arbitration. Any person designated as a Meutral shall immediately discione in writing to all Parties any circumstances likely to affect impartiality, including any bias or financial or personal interest in the outcome of the arbitration ("Bias Disclosure"). If any Party objects to the service of any Meutral after receipt of that Meutral's Bias Disclosure, such Meutral shall be replaced in the same manner in which that Meutral was selected.
- 5. The Arbitrator or Chair, as the case may be, ("Arbitrator") shall fix the date, time, and place for the hearing. The place of the hearing shall be within the Properties unless otherwise agreed by the Parties.
  - 6. Any farty may be represented by an attorney or other authorized representative throughout the arbitration proceedings.
- ?. All persons who, is the judgement of the Arbitrator, have a direct interest in the erbitration are entitled to attend hearings.
  - 8. There shall be no stenographic record of the proceedings.
- 9. The hearing chall be conducted in whatever manner will, in the Arbitrator's judgement, most fairly and expeditionaly permit the full presentation of the evidence and arguments of the Parties.
- 10. The Parties may offer such avidence and material as is relevant to the Claim, and shall produce such additional evidence as the Arbitrator may deem necessary to reach an understanding and determination of the Claim. The Arbitrator shall be the sole judge of the relevance and materiality of any evidence offered, and conformity to the legal rules of evidence shall not be necessary. The Arbitrator shall be authorized, but not required, to administer ouths to mitnesses.
  - 11. The Arbitrator shall declare the bearings closed when satisfied the record is complete.
  - 12. There will be so postherring briefs.
- 13. The Award shall be rendered immediately following the close of the hearing, if possible, and no later than 14 days from the close of the hearing, enless otherwise agreed by the farties. The Award shall be in writing, shall be signed by the Arbitrator and acknowledged before a notary public. If the Arbitrator believes at opinion is accessary, it shall be in summary form.
  - 14. If there is more than one arbitrator, all decisions of the Panel and the Award shall be by majority note.
- 15. Back Party agrees to accept as legal delivery of the Award the degree of a true copy in the mail addressed to that Party or its actorney at the address communicated to the Arbitrator at the hearing.

ŦΚ

SOURCE OF ALLOWER OF ALLOWER OF ALLOWER PRESENTS, That I, Played B Russell

have made, constituted and appointed and by these presents do make, constitute and appoint

my true and lawful attorney, for me and in my name, place and stead and for my use and benefit, to

giving and granting unto my said attorney full power and authority to do and perform all and every act and thing whatsoever requisite and necessary to be done, as fully, to all intents and purposes, as I might or could do if personally present, hereby ratifying and confirming all that my said attorney shall lawfully do or cause to be done, by virtue hereof.

x Florid & Rossoft STATE OF OREGON, County of Descharte State of OREGON, County of Descharte State of S My commission expires 2/2/194

STATE OF OREGON, POWER OF ATTORNEY TO